
 

Agenda version 06/11/2024 10:00 
 

WEST KLICKITAT REGIONAL FIRE AUTHORITY 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Date 6/18/2024  (moved from 6/20/24) 
Time 18:30 
Location 119 NE Church Street, White Salmon WA 
Join Zoom Meeting https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84445302280?pwd=SHc2ZGlaWTNyN1IreXdLNGIwa3RKUT09 
Dial by your location +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID 844 4530 2280 
Passcode 378202 

AGENDA 
WKRFA Planning Committee meetings are Special Meetings for both White Salmon City Council and KCFD3.  

• Open Meeting. 
• Roll call. 
• Approval of agenda.  
• Minutes of the last meeting. 
• RFA Transition Projects: 

o Project Management- Ben Giant  
o Subcommittee Reports   
 Governance and Administrative 
 HR and Finance 
 Operations 

o ACTION ITEMS: 
 Recommendations from Operations Subcommittee:  

1. DBA name 
2. Numbering system for stations, apparatus and personnel. 
3. Hiring criteria for support staff. 
4. Programs to support and promote volunteer coverage. 
5. Efficiencies, reduce duplication. 
6. Mission and Values statements. 

• Planning Committee Financial Report. 
o Available funds $25,000. 

Expenditure to date: 
• Discuss level of service: Further discussion needed with comparison to task force 

recommendations. 
• Washington Fire Commissioners Association- Roger Ferris Executive Director, will 

attend the July meeting. https://wfca.wa.gov 
• Next Meeting:  July 18th 18:30. Location: WSFD  
• Motion to adjourn: 

 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84445302280?pwd=SHc2ZGlaWTNyN1IreXdLNGIwa3RKUT09
https://wfca.wa.gov/


 

WKRFA Planning Committee Meeting 05/16/2024   Page 1 of 3 
  

West Klickitat Regional Fire Authority  

Planning Committee Meeting  

119 NE Church street White Salmon WA 98672. 

Thursday May 16, 2024. 6:30pm. Draft without committee approval 

• Meeting called to order at 18:30. 

• Attendance:  
WKRFA Planning Committee: Quorum. Thomas Montag, Ben Giant, David Lindley, Robert Connor, 

Charles Virts.   

Absent: Jason Hartmann 

Advisory groups/staff: Adam Brake, Chief Hunsaker (WSFD), Chief Long (KCFD3), Stephanie Porter 

(CoWS Clerk), Rozalind Plumb (KCFD3 Secretary). Absent: Captain Jess Wardwell, Eric Bosler, Eric 

Wilson, Jennifer McLean (KCFD3 Admin). 

• Agenda:  Addition of Project Management Report.  
Move to approve the agenda with the addition, at the discretion of the chairman, of 
project management report” made by Ben Giant, seconded by David Lindly. (5 yay, 0 nay) 
motion passed.  

• Minutes of April 18 Meeting.  
“Move to approve the minutes” made by Charles Virts, seconded by Ben Giant. (5 yay, 0 
nay) motion passed. 
 

• RFA Transition Projects: 
o Subcommittee reports  

▪ Governance and Administrative. 
A sample governance policy has been distributed to the subcommittee for review. 
There have been some updates, and a draft should be available for the planning 
committee soon. There are also example policies from Stevens County that will be 
reviewed and adapted for the RFA. The subcommittees will be asked to review 
specific policies relevant to their expertise. Care will be taken to prioritize which 
policies are required before 2025.  
 

▪ Finance & HR (See report) 
EIN number update. The EIN is needed to set up state business accounts.  
Recognition of the upfront costs involved. White Salmon City Council will discuss the 
upfront funding in June.  Discussion on contracts and no issues have been identified. 
Anticipated costs before January include insurance to cover liability of the board, and 
facilities and vehicles, as they are transferred to the RFA in preparation for 
operational date January 1.  
 

▪ Operations subcommittee  
Recommendations being put forward include: 

1. DBA name and logo. Two options have been put forward.  



 

WKRFA Planning Committee Meeting 05/16/2024   Page 2 of 3 
  

• Southwest Fire & Rescue 

• Central Gorge Fire & Rescue 
The Planning Committee requested the two options be put out for vote. 
Chief Hunsaker will organize a vote between the 2 options.  

2. Numbering system for stations, apparatus and personnel. The 
recommendation is to use a 30 / 300 system. 

3. Hiring criteria for support staff.  The hiring of a paid firefighter is being 
outlined and a tentative schedule is being drafted. Coordinate with HR before 
moving forward with recommendations.  

4. Programs to support and promote volunteer coverage. Duty crews are being 
discussed and training levels needed for officers.  Coordinate with HR before 
moving forward with recommendation.  

5. Efficiencies, reduce duplication. Standardized documents, data collection and 
report writing are being addressed. 

6. Mission and Values statements. Refine before acceptance. 
 
Decisions on the above recommendations will be addressed at the June meeting.  
  
Discussion on the approval process of recommendations being presented to the 
Planning Committee. As a planning committee they can evaluate the 
recommendations. Review of the recommendations is being documented in the 
meetings. As adjustments are made and consensus is reached, then the 
recommendations can be ‘approved’. When the Governing Board is effective on 
September 30, they can ratify the decisions made by the Planning Committee.    
 
EMS License - Discussion on the transition period, insurance and liability. Both 
agencies have licenses in effect beyond January 1, 2025. There is a lengthy process to 
get the license for the RFA. Coordination with the Department of Health, and local 
and regional Trauma Councils is needed.    
 
Resolutions –There will be several resolutions prepared for the RFA Governing Board 
to approve on day 1 of the RFA.  
 

• Financial Need of the planning Committee  
KCFD3 has set aside $25,000 to set up the RFA. White Salmon City Council is working to do a 
similar amount.  
Discussion on who has authority to sign funds out. KCFD3 Commissioners can sign for funds they 

have set aside for the RFA during the transition period between now and January. The RFA Governing 

Board will have signature authority once the funds are held in the RFA accounts set up by the County 

Treasurer.   

• Levels of Service 

• Nothing to add currently. Further discussion is needed with comparison to task force 
recommendations. 
 



 

WKRFA Planning Committee Meeting 05/16/2024   Page 3 of 3 
  

 
 

• Project Management – Ben Giant 
o Smart sheets will be the platform used for the planning process. 
o Projects can be assigned and updated with completion percentages. Documents can 

be added. 
o The public can view the platform and documents.  
o The project sheets can be exported and held by the agency for records retention 

purposes and public record requests.  
o Ben has volunteered to use his account for this project. The Planning Committee is 

grateful for this donation and his time volunteering as the Project Manager. 
 

 

Adjournment:  

Motion to adjourn made by Thomas Montag seconded by David Lindley. Meeting adjourned 19:45. 

Next Meeting – CHANGE from Thursday 20 June to Tuesday 18 June 18:30  White Salmon.  

APPROVED BY:                                                                              Attest: 

 

____________________________________         __________________________ 
Committee Chairman -Thomas Montag    (date)                  District Secretary Rozalind Plumb 
 

 
_____________________________________                 
Vice Chair-   Jason Hartmann                           (date) 

 



P a g e  1 | 6 

 

West Klickitat Regional Fire Authority 
Operational Sub-Committee recommendations 

 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 1: 
Select a DBA name for the WKRFA for marketing purposes, logo, t-shirts, patches, etc.  
 
After careful consideration and input from volunteers, the OSC has provided the top two 
recommended DBA names. These names are: 
 

1. Southwest Fire & Rescue  
2. Central Gorge Fire & Rescue  

 
Names with specific reference to Klickitat County or White Salmon were intentionally excluded to 
allow for future inclusion of outside entities (i.e. Skamania Fire District 3, Klickitat Fire District 1, 
Bingen Fire, etc.) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 2: 
Select a numbering system for the stations, apparatus and personnel of the WKRFA. 
 
Considering the current numbering methodology of agencies within Klickitat County, and 
volunteer input, the OSC recommends: 
 
 
Station numbers 
Station 30 = White Salmon Station 
Station 31 = Husum Station 
Station 32 = Cherry Lane Station 
Station 33 = Available for future inclusion of 
Bingen 
Station 34 = Mt. Brook Station. 

Personnel numbers  
300 = Chief 
301 = Batt. Chief 
302-310 = Captains/Lieutenants 
311+ = Firefighters  
 

 
Equipment numbering 
White Salmon St. 30 Husum St. 31 Cherry Lane St. 32 Mt. Brook St. 34 
Engine 30 
Engine 30-01 
Tender 30 
Tender 30-01 
Brush 30 
Utility 30 

Engine 31 
Tender 31 
Brush 31 
Aid 31 

Engine 32 
Tender 32 
Brush 32 

Engine 34 
Brush 34 



P a g e  2 | 6 

 

RECOMMENDATION 3: 
Create hiring criteria and position duties for support staff. 
 
Excerpt from WKRFA Final Plan “…to engage immediately in 2025 to fill staffing positions to  
ramp up a rigorous and perpetual “community based” volunteer recruiting, training, 
maintaining and retaining” program to increase and maintain levels of response and support 
staffing defined in the 2025 Master and Deployment plans. Said program shall include well-
defined and executed training standards for all levels of the volunteer program supported by 
training and certification programs provided at the local level”.  
 
The OSC recommends the following: 

1. Effective Jan 1., begin announcement period for hiring of: a) Training officer and b) 
firefighter/EMT in charge of recruitment.  

a. The hiring process should consist of: 
i. Announcement period 

ii. Resume scoring 
iii. Assessment center 
iv. Oral board by volunteers/citizens/partner agency leadership. 
v. Create a confidential hiring list posted by score that shall be good for one 

year. 
vi. New hires are subject to a 1-year probationary period with performance 

reviews at 6 months, 1 year and every year thereafter.  

2. The hiring criteria recommended for the training position are still being developed. 

3. The hiring criteria recommended for the firefighter/EMT in charge of recruitment are 
still being developed. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P a g e  3 | 6 

 

Recommendation 4:  
Develop programs to support and promote volunteer coverage 
 
Excerpts from the WKRFA Final Plan: 

• “Develop and adopt a new Internal Support Services Plan to maintain a state of 
readiness and ensure a full scope of services and support to the responders, staff, and 
internal customers of WKRFA." 

• "...considerations and contingencies shall be incorporated to develop an alternate, 
subordinate EMS response and transport delivery service to supplement the current EMS 
District system." 

• “ As part of the WKRFA Master and Deployment Plan, the WKRFA shall develop and 
adopt a new Internal Support Services Plan to maintain a state of readiness and ensure 
a full scope of services and support to the responders, staff and internal customers of 
WKRFA” 

 
The OSC recommends the following: 
Develop a multi-tiered response network that supports and supplements the currently utilized 
“from home volunteer response” model. The from home response model is vital and should not 
be replaced by creation of any additional response tiers.  

 
The recommended tiers to add to the from home volunteer response model are: 

a. PAID SUPPORT STAFF: (training position and volunteer recruitment position) 
i. These positions will ensure a firefighter/EMT will be available for 

emergency response during normal working hours where volunteer 
response is minimal.  

ii. These positions will support the volunteers by creating a “a rigorous and 
perpetual “community based” volunteer recruiting, training, maintaining 
and retaining” program to increase and maintain levels of response and 
support staffing defined in the 2025 Master and Deployment plans”. 

iii. These positions will help ensure equipment remains in a state of 
readiness. 

iv. These positions can help supplement the EMS response provided by 
KCEMS, within the WKRFA boundaries, during weekday hours.  

v. The recruitment position would be well suited to also work on prevention 
efforts around the community and facilitate public education.  
 

b. DUTY CREW PROGRAM: (Volunteers staffing stations) 
i. Volunteers will have the opportunity to staff a station during specified 

hours to ensure a level of coverage. In exchange for their time, volunteers 
will be reimbursed via stipend per shift and an additional stipend per call. 

ii. The initial roll out of this program will be slow and methodical. In order to 
maximize coverage with current budget allotments for the stipend 
programs, it is recommended that duty crews initially be filled during 



P a g e  4 | 6 

 

weekends. As volunteer availability and budget allotments increase, this 
program should be expanded to certain hours throughout the week. 

iii. It is recommended that the minimum qualifications to be eligible to serve 
on a duty crew should be one firefighter/apparatus operator and one 
firefighter/EMT. Should one member be both a firefighter/A.O. and EMT, 
the second member could be a firefighter without additional 
qualifications. 

iv. Those with higher qualifications should receive a higher stipend. 
c. OFFICER COVERAGE PROGRAM:  

i. Volunteer officer will serve, in rotating shifts, to ensure an officer can 
initiate response most, if not all, hours of the week/weekend. This officer 
will be ‘on call’ during their scheduled shifts and respond from home to 
incidents. During regular weekday hours, officer coverage should be 
provided by the department Chief or his/her designee. Weeknight and 
weekend hours should be covered by the volunteer ‘duty officer’. 

ii. Again, the initial roll out of this program will be slow as more volunteers 
become trained and skilled to respond in the role of an officer. It is 
expected that this program will grow over time, thus increasing coverage 
and creating redundancies.  
 

d. RESIDENCY PROGRAM:  
i. Volunteers who are enrolled in any form of education pursuant to fire, 

EMT or other related industry, may live at a fire station. In exchange for 
room and board, the residents will serve on scheduled shifts, and perform 
other station duties.  

ii. It is suggested that this program be rolled within the first 3 years of the 
RFA.  

iii. Future growth of this program will be dependent upon housing 
availability at the WKRFA stations.  
 

e. SUPPORT DIVISION: 
i. In the future, the OSC would recommend the formation of a support 

division comprised of volunteers who have no interest in fighting fire or 
providing emergency medical care.  

ii. The role of the support division will be to provide logistical support to 
front line firefighters. Duties for this division should include, but not be 
limited to:  

1. Providing refreshments to firefighters on prolonged incidents. 
2. Obtain supplies or refill air bottles at the station, during prolonged 

events. 
3. Assist with inter-departmental functions (awards banquets, 

ceremonies, parades, etc.) 
4. Staff department cooling or warming shelters during extreme 

weather events. 
5. Assist with public relations events. 



P a g e  5 | 6 

 

RECOMMENDATION 5: 
Increase efficiencies & work on elimination of redundancies. 
 
Per RCW 52.33.040, the WKRFA should be able to report annually on our performance of service 
delivery goals.  
 
WKRFA Final Plan Excerpt: “On the Effective Date, WKRFA shall implement advanced record 
management systems [RMS] for incident response, training and all activities relating to operational and 
support services of the WKRFA. The RMS shall record, process, and regularly report its incident activity 
and response performance data collectively as an RFA and individually between the rural and the city. 
The WKRFA will annually compile and generate an annual report that will be available to the public and 
provided to the City of White Salmon.” 
 
The OSC recommends the following: 

1. Adopt a singular reporting program that combines cost effective functionality with ease 
of use. Various programs such as ImageTrend and ESO were evaluated. The OSC 
recommends the use of ESO due to: 

a. Ease of use 
b. Integration with Active 911 to help simplify data entry. 
c. Multi-faceted data collection, including emergency response information, 

personnel data, equipment inventory tracking, fleet management, etc. 
d. System capability for future growth, there are other modules available should the 

WKRFA wish to expand the use of the system beyond what is currently being 
utilized. 

2. Administration should define service delivery goals within 2025 by zone. Each zone will 
be an area covered by a specific station. I.e. White Salmon Station = Zone 1, Husum 
station = zone 2, etc. 

a. Utilizing 2024 data, a baseline service standard should be defined by each zone 
and new goals should be created.  

b. Service goals will refer to how fast volunteers begin their response (from station 
and arrive on scene), 80% of the time. 

c. Delivery goals should also be stated as to how many vehicles, how quickly to a 
full first-alarm assignment (i.e. 1 engine, 1 tender, duty officer).  

d. ESO and updated run reports will help measure results for ongoing improvement.  

3. Standardize documents, equipment & processes within the WKRFA 
a. This includes, but is not limited to: 

i. Standard Operating Guidelines 
ii. Vehicle and equipment check lists  

iii. Documents within the cab of each vehicle (maps, insurance documents, 
vehicle incident report, DOT ERG, Fire reports, Size up reports, drivers 
log.) 

iv. New volunteer onboarding process 
1. Application 
2. Required attending of three meetings, then: 



P a g e  6 | 6 

 

3. Background check, doctors physical, driving test, random or 
regular checks of driver’s history & license. 

v. Quarterly skills assessments for volunteers and utilize task books for 
volunteers to progress in skills and rank. 

vi. Training and certification requirements for drivers, officers, etc. 
vii. Create purchasing policies for officers. 

viii. Critical equipment placement by type of apparatus (i.e. EMS kits are 
located in X compartment on every Aid licensed vehicle). 

ix. Clearly defined process for personnel complaints/concerns at all levels. 
x. Further develop Quartermaster role regionally to manage inventory of 

personal protective equipment, hose, fittings, etc. 

4. Consolidate/merge existing accounts 
a. Facebook pages 
b. Websites 
c. Active 911 paging system accounts 
d. Volunteer email distribution lists  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 6: 
Adopt new Mission and Values Statements 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 

“To exceed our customers’ expectations through diligent emergent and non-emergent services, 
every single day.” 

 
VALUES STATEMENT 
 
“Create TRUST and long-lasting relationships at every level. 
DEDICATE our existence to our customers every day.   
RESPECT the responsibility entrusted within us and dedicate ourselves to carry out our duties 
with pride in ownership.  
HONOR our relationships through respect, honesty and integrity.” 



 
 

West Klickitat  
Regional Fire Authority 

Governance Policy 
DRAFT 

18 June 2024 
 

18 June 2024 
 



 

  Page 1 of 31 

 
 

 
Table of Contents 

Forward........................................................................................................................................................... 3 

1. General Qualifications, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Board of Commissioners 6 

1.01 Responsibilities .......................................................................................................................... 6 
1.02 Leadership ................................................................................................................................... 6 
1.03 Policy Making ............................................................................................................................ 6 
1.04 Management Techniques ........................................................................................................ 7 
1.05 Legal Qualifications ................................................................................................................. 7 
1.06 Policy Decisions ........................................................................................................................ 7 

2. Powers of the Board ......................................................................................................................... 8 

2.01 RCW ............................................................................................................................................. 8 
2.02 Committees ................................................................................................................................. 8 
2.03 Board Membership ................................................................................................................... 8 
2.04 Offices of the Board ................................................................................................................. 9 
2.05 Officers Duties ........................................................................................................................... 9 

3. Functions of the Board .................................................................................................................... 9 

3.01 Policy ............................................................................................................................................ 9 
3.02 Policy Amendments or Suspensions ................................................................................. 10 
3.03 Personnel Contracts ................................................................................................................ 10 
3.04 Fire Chief ................................................................................................................................... 10 
3.05 Public Board Representation ............................................................................................... 11 
3.06 Advance Information Required ........................................................................................... 11 
3.07 Disputed Items ......................................................................................................................... 11 
3.08 Candidate Support................................................................................................................... 11 
3.09 New Member Support............................................................................................................ 11 

4. Board of Commissioners Meetings ........................................................................................... 12 

4.01 Content ....................................................................................................................................... 12 
4.02 Preparation of the Agenda .................................................................................................... 12 
4.03 Minutes ...................................................................................................................................... 13 
4.04 Rules of Order .......................................................................................................................... 13 
4.05 Voting ......................................................................................................................................... 13 
4.06 Quorum ...................................................................................................................................... 14 
4.07 Conflict of Interest .................................................................................................................. 14 
4.08 Adjournment ............................................................................................................................. 14 
4.09 Regular Meeting ...................................................................................................................... 14 
4.10 Special Meetings ..................................................................................................................... 14 
4.11 Executive Sessions ................................................................................................................. 14 
4.12 Meeting of the Board of Volunteers .................................................................................. 15 



 

  Page 2 of 31 

 
 

 
 
 

5. Personnel ........................................................................................................................................... 15 

5.01 Equal Employment Opportunity ......................................................................................... 15 
5.02 Affirmative Action ................................................................................................................. 15 
5.03 Sexual Harassment ................................................................................................................. 15 
5.04 Personnel Policies ................................................................................................................... 15 
5.05 Assignments ............................................................................................................................. 16 
5.06 Duties of Fire District Staff ....................................................................................................... 16 
5.07 Delegation of Responsibility ............................................................................................... 16 

6. Budget Administration .................................................................................................................. 16 

6.01 Budget ........................................................................................................................................ 16 
6.02 Spending Limitations ............................................................................................................. 16 
6.03 Purchases ................................................................................................................................... 16 
6.04 Reports ....................................................................................................................................... 16 

7. Compensation .................................................................................................................................. 17 

7.01 Reimbursement for Expenses .............................................................................................. 17 
7.02 Compensation for Services Performed ............................................................................. 17 
7.03 Educational Goal ..................................................................................................................... 17 
7.04 Travel .......................................................................................................................................... 18 

8. Legal Counsel .................................................................................................................................. 18 

8.01 Advice of Counsel .................................................................................................................. 18 
8.02 Authorization to Seek Counsel............................................................................................ 18 

9. Property Inventory, Review, and Disposal .............................................................................. 18 

9.01 Inventory Required ................................................................................................................. 18 
9.02 Review of Inventory ............................................................................................................... 18 
9.03 Lawful Disposal ...................................................................................................................... 18 
9.04 Sale to Other Agencies .......................................................................................................... 19 

Board of Commissioner’s Duty Statement to the Community ..................................................................... 21 

Board Role in Reinforcing the Organization’s Vision .................................................................................. 23 

Potential Commissioner and Staff Problem Areas ........................................................................................ 24 

Working with the Chief and Fire District Staff ............................................................................................ 25 

Unethical Practices ....................................................................................................................................... 26 

Board of Commissioner’s Duty Statement for the Chief .............................................................................. 27 



 

  Page 3 of 31 

 
 

 
Forward 
 
 The decisions that the Executive Staff, Fire Officers and other positions of leadership shall make 

for the administration and operation of the West Klickitat Regional Fire Service Authority will be 
based on the policies established by the Governing Board as set forth in this policy manual.  

 
 This policy manual will be kept current as to revisions, additions, and deletions in accordance 

with Board action and will be available to the public and staff at all times. A record of changes 
shall be made on the following page.  

 
 Flexibility in making policy changes allows the Board to meet future needs and challenges. 

Accordingly, the Board reserves the right to amend, modify and eliminate any of these policies, 
procedures, and benefits at any time.  

 
 This policy manual is not a complete statement of Board policies, nor does it form a part of any 

employment contract or promise any specific treatment. This manual is simply a general 
summary of the Board’s current policies, procedures, and benefits.  

 
 The Board reserves full discretionary authority to waive, interpret, and apply all policies and 

procedures. The Board’s determination on all such matters is final and binding.  
 
 This manual supersedes any other oral or written provisions, descriptions, or understandings of 

the West Klickitat Regional Fire Service Authority’s policies, procedures, and benefits; except 
that any conflicts between this manual and written policies adopted by Board action shall be 
presented to the Board for resolution. 

   
 Policies in this manual that are required by federal or state laws and regulations may be subject to 

change at any time by changes to the governing laws and regulations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

  Page 4 of 31 

 
 

 
RECORD OF CHANGES 

 
Date Section Summary of Change 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   



 

  Page 5 of 31 

 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 "Board" or "Governance Board" or "Governing Board" means the 

governance body of the West Klickitat Regional Fire Service Authority as 
provided by RCW 52.26.020. 

 
 "Fire Chief" or "Chief" means the chief administrative officer of the West 

Klikitat Regional Fire Authority 
 
 "RCW" means Revised Code of Washington 
 
 “ROBERTS RULES OF ORDER” means the following publication: 

Robert’s Rules of Order by Henry M Robert, III, and others, Public Affairs, 
12th edition, 20 Sep. 2020, ISBN -13: 978-1-5417-9771-0  

 
 “VOLUNTEER” means a volunteer member of the West Klickitat Regional 

Fire Service Authority who meets the definition found in RCW 51.25.035 
 
 “WAC” means Washington Administrative Code 
 
 "WFCA" means Washington Fire Commissioner's Association 
 
 "WKRFA" means the West Klickitat Regional Fire Service Authority 
 

 



 

  Page 6 of 31 

 
 

 
1. General Qualifications, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Governing 

Board 
 
1.01 Responsibilities 
 

The members of the Governance Board for WKRFA carry a great deal of responsibility, 
including but not limited to the following: 
 
• They must be aware and apply all of the legal requirements in areas ranging from 

budgeting and taxation to holding public meetings and elections.  
• They are responsible to the citizens of the WKRFA for the level of service, the 

quality of service and competency of personnel providing the WKRFA's services.  
• They must be able to put aside self-interests in order to assure that the needs of the 

people of the WKRFA are met.  
 
1.02 Leadership 
 

Effective leadership from the Board of Governance is essential for the WKRFA to 
provide quality service.  Board members must consistently abide by the following: 
 
• Recognize that an individual member has no legal status to act or speak for the Board 

outside of an official meeting.  
• Refuse to make commitments on any matter that should properly come before the 

Board.  
• Respect the opinion of other members and graciously accept the principal of 

“majority rule” in Board decisions.  
• Insist that all of the Governance Board's transactions be on an ethical and above-

board basis.  
• Refuse to allow personal problems to be brought into Board consideration.  
• Insist that personnel complaints go through the proper chain of command first and 

only to the Board if not resolved at those levels.  
 
1.03 Policy Making  

 
Policymaking is one of the most important responsibilities of a board member.  It is 
essential that board members thoroughly understand the goals, objectives, and general 
operating policies of the WKRFA.  Developing goals and policies is a two-step process. 
 
• Planning - Planning begins with the Board establishing levels of service and 

measurable goals, objectives and performance measures for the WKRFA that adapt to 
changing conditions. Planning includes identifying and analyzing potential 



 

  Page 7 of 31 

 
 

opportunities and selecting the best options available.  Flexibility and regular review 
are central to the development and maintenance of WKRFA plans.  

• Policy - After goals and objectives are identified, the Board must develop specific 
strategies or policies to achieve these goals.  Policies simplify decision-making for 
the Board and personnel. By developing defined steps and guidelines to steer 
WKRFA actions, objectives can be more easily realized.  Policies should be evaluated 
and revised periodically to ensure they lead toward the stated goals.  

 
 1.04 Management Techniques 
 

 A board member’s time is limited.  The following techniques assist in utilizing time 
efficiently and lead to more effective decision-making. 

 
• Set Priorities - List projects in order of importance. Act on them accordingly.  
• Develop Study Plans - List steps that must be followed and completion dates for 

each project.  
• Encourage Citizen Participation - Citizen groups and advisory committees can 

provide a great deal of information and expertise to aid the Board in its decision-
making.  Generally, at least one Board member should be on each committee.  

• Delegate Responsibility where Possible - Do not get involved in every WKRFA 
activity.  

• Preparation - Stay abreast of current subjects so you have knowledge of the 
WKRFA's activities.  

• Follow Through - Use your own leadership and authority to make sure good ideas 
are actually implemented.  

 
 1.05 Legal Qualifications 
 

• All members of the Governance Board must be registered voters and must reside 
within the boundaries of the WKRFA.  

• Before beginning the duties of office, each commissioner shall take and subscribe the 
official oath for the faithful discharge of the duties of office as required by 
RCW 29A.04.133, which oath shall be filed in the office of the auditor of the county 
in which all, or the largest portion of, the district is located. 

  
1.06 Policy Decisions 

 
 The following policy decisions should be reviewed each year. 
 

• Agreements and policies regarding mutual aid and automatic aid to other emergency 
services providers.   

• Response outside the WKRFA and not within mutual aid response areas.  
• Contracts with other agencies.  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=29A.04.133


 

  Page 8 of 31 

 
 

• Contracts with vendors and businesses providing services to the WKRFA.  
• WKRFA fees for services provided.  
• The regular Board meeting schedule.  
• Contracts with employees.  
• Activities permitted within the fire stations.  
• Participation of staff and Board members in WKRFA related educational sessions.  
• Accident insurance coverage for personnel (paid and volunteer).  
• Membership with the Washington Fire Commissioners Association. 
• Budget forecasts and budget activities supported and driven by established goals, 

objectives, strategic plans and performance measures  
• Organizational action plan, goals, and objectives.  
• Assessment of current insurance needs.  
• Review of equipment and facilities needs.  
• Current issues and their impacts on the WKRFA.  
• Communications between commissioners.  
• Activities and/or progress of any committees and revise task schedules as necessary.  
• Legal issues addressed during the past year and determination on the adequacy of 

legal opinions and advice given by the WKRFA’s legal representation.  
 
 2. Powers of the Board 
 
 2.01 RCW 
 

The powers of the Governance Board are outlined in the revised code of Washington 
Title 52.  See Appendix.B. 

 
2.02 Committees 

 
The Board is authorized to appoint advisory committees as follows: 
 

• The Board Chair will outline the duties and responsibilities of each advisory 
committee at the time of committee appointment.  

• A Board member may serve as an ex-officio member.  
• The Board Chair will inform the advisory committee(s) about the Washington 

Inspection of Public Records Law.  
• The Chair of each advisory committee is responsible for keeping written minutes and 

making them available to the public through the WKFRA office.  
• The Chair of each committee will determine when the committee has completed its 

charge and should be disbanded, and shall make such a recommendation to the Board 
Chair.  

• Advisory committees may be disbanded at any time by a majority vote of the 
members of the Board. 



 

  Page 9 of 31 

 
 

 2.03 Board Membership 
 
• Number of Members – Beginning Sep. 30, 2024 the WKRFA Governance Board 

shall be composed of six (6) members, three (3) sitting fire commissioners of 
Klickitat County Fire District No. 3 and three (3) sitting members of the White 
Salmon, Washington, City Council. 

• Not later than Jan. 31, 2027 the Governing Board shall adopt and approve a plan to 
reduce board membership to five (5) at large commissioner positions, each to be 
directly elected by the citizens of WKRFA. Those elected to serve on the successor 
Governing Board shall assume those initial terms in office Jan. 1, 2028. The term of 
office for those elected to serve on the successor Board shall be staggered as detailed 
below. At the expiration of the initial terms of office, commissioners shall be elected 
to serve four (4) year terms in office.  

 
    Commissioner Position  Term   Expiration Date of Initial Term 
    Position No. 1     2 years   December 31, 2029 
    Position No. 2     3 years   December 31, 2030 
    Position No. 3     2 years   December 31, 2029 
    Position No. 4     3 years   December 31, 2030 
    Position No. 5     4 years   December 31, 2031 
 

• Vacancies – Should a vacancy occur on the successor Board, that vacancy will be 
advertised and the Board will execute a selection process and appoint an individual 
from among those indicating their interest in filling the vacancy, in accordance with 
RCW Title 52.  

• Service as Volunteer – A member of the Governance Board may serve as a volunteer 
of the WKRFA if the Board unanimously approves a resolution authorizing such 
service. When serving as a volunteer, a board member is entitled to receive the same 
benefits provided to all volunteers but is not entitled to the board per diem for time 
spent serving as a volunteer.  

·   
 2.04 Offices of the Board 
 

• Officers – The officers of the Board shall consist of:  
a. Chair  
b. Vice Chair  

• Election – Election of officers shall be held at the first meeting of each calendar year.  
• Vacancy – If a vacancy occurs in the Chair or Vice Chair position, an election of 

officers shall take place at the next regular meeting of the Board to fill the unexpired 
term created by the vacancy. 

 
 
 2.05 Officers Duties 
 



 

  Page 10 of 31 

 
 

• Duties of the Chair – The duties of the Chair shall be as follows:  
a. To preside at all meetings of the Board, with the right to make motions, 

discuss questions, and the option to vote on any issue.  
b. To sign any documentation that requires an official signature on behalf of the 

Board.  
c. To represent the Board in deliberation with other Boards, Fire Departments, or 

agencies unless another member has been appointed by a majority of the 
Board to do so.  

d. To speak on behalf of the Board when the Board is not in session.  
Communications will be in accordance with discussions, agreements and 
actions taken by the majority of the Board.  

e. To call special meetings and perform all other duties prescribed by law or set 
forth in the Board’s policies and rules.  

• Duties of the Vice-Chair – In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall perform 
the duties and the rights and obligations of the Chair.  

• Chair and Vice Chair Absence – In the absence of both the Chair and Vice Chair, 
any other member selected by the Board shall preside.  

 
 3. Functions of the Board 

 
3.1 Policy  

 
 The Board shall establish and/or approve all policies of the West Klickitat Regional Fire 

Service Authority, reserving for itself all authority and responsibility not otherwise 
assigned to the Fire Chief or others. 
 
 Policies of the Board shall meet the following guidelines: 
 
• Board policies shall recognize the need to delegate authority to staff.  The Board will 

formulate and adopt written policies to assist staff in its discretionary use of delegated 
authority.  

• Policies approved by majority vote of the Governance Board and recorded in the 
minutes of the Board shall be regarded as official.  

• The Board shall authorize reports and studies it deems necessary to ensure its policies 
have been properly executed.  

• Any formal motion or action which does not comply with or amends or supplements 
existing policy shall be called to the Board’s attention before a vote is taken.  

• To ensure its policies are current and provide staff with appropriate flexibility, the 
Board will review its policies on an annual basis, or when deemed necessary.  

• If a policy or portion thereof is found to be in conflict with state or federal law or the 
rules and regulations of a higher authority, such policy or portion thereof is 
automatically null and void without Board action.  



 

  Page 11 of 31 

 
 

• In the event of disagreement over the application, extent or interpretation of a policy, 
the conflict will be decided by a majority of the Board.  

• Board rules, designed to explain, detail or otherwise organize the application of a 
policy, once adopted, are considered to be a part of the policy.  

• Proposals to adopt, change, delete, add to or repeal a policy may originate from 
anyone affected by WKRFA activities, including a Board member, Fire Chief, 
taxpayer, employee, employee organization, consultant, or civic group.  The Board 
Chair shall determine whether or not the Governance Board will consider such 
proposals, except that the Board shall automatically consider proposals supported by 
at least two Board members.  

• Proposed new policies will be reviewed in draft form by the Chief, and should be 
reviewed by organizations and groups affected by the proposed policy, before Board 
action.  

 
 3.02 Policy Amendments or Suspensions 
 

• Amendments – Policies may only be amended by a majority vote of the Board after 
the proposed amendment has been submitted in writing, placed on the agenda, and 
considered during a Board meeting.  

• Suspensions – Policies may be suspended, or revoked, by a majority vote of all 
members of the Governance Board when the proposal has been submitted in writing.  

 
 3.03 Personnel Contracts 
 

 The Governance Board will engage in discussions and reach agreements with personal 
service contracts with individuals and/or recognized employee groups, as required in the 
Washington Collective Bargaining Laws of the Public Employment Relations 
Commission, reserving to itself or its designee(s) the responsibility to negotiate with 
employee groups. 

 
 3.04 Fire Chief 
 

 The Governing Board will select and appoint by resolution the Fire Chief who shall be 
the Boards direct representative in management of the WKRFA. The Chief shall be 
responsible for day-to-day operation and oversight of the WKRFA, including 
responsibility for implementing Board policies, and accomplishment of organizational 
goals and objectives as adopted by the Board. The Board will provide the financial means 
to implement Board policies and accomplish organizational goals adopted by the Board. 

 
 The appointment process utilized in filling the Chief's position will include reasonable 

and appropriate input from the volunteer members of the WKRFA via their volunteer 
association representative. 

 



 

  Page 12 of 31 

 
 

 3.05 Administrative Manager 
  

 The Board will select and appoint by resolution the Administrative Manager who shall be 
the WKRFA Secretary. The Administrative Manager is responsible for keeping records 
of the proceedings of the Board, maintaining the clerical and financial records of the 
WKRFA, providing support to the members of the Governance Board, the Fire Chief and 
Volunteers and performing other duties as prescribed by law. 

 The Administrative Manager shall take and subscribe an official oath similar to that of 
the fire commissioners which oath shall be filed in the same office as that of the 
commissioners. 

 
 3.06 Public Board Representation 

 
Giving the appearance of representing the Board when not authorized to do so is 
destructive to the accomplishment of WKRFA's goals and objectives and to the team 
philosophy of the Governance Board. Board members shall refer requests of Board or 
WKRFA opinion or position on issues to the Chair and the Fire Chief for a consensus 
opinion/position of the whole Board.  In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair is 
authorized to speak on behalf of the Board. 

 
 3.07 Advance Information Required 
 

Except in emergencies, the Board shall not decide questions before examining and 
evaluating information which is pertinent to the action being proposed. Except in 
emergencies or critical decisions, the Board shall incorporate the “two touch” rule on 
issues which is further discussed in Board agenda section. 

 
 3.08 Disputed Items 
 

Whenever possible, disputed items should be discussed with the Chief and other parties 
to the dispute prior to action being requested at a Board meeting.  If a satisfactory 
conclusion cannot be reached, the disputed items may be placed on the agenda of a future 
meeting at the discretion of the Board.  All relative information shall be provided to 
Board members. 
 
 
 

 
 3.09 Board Member Support 
 

 The Board, through WKRFA staff, shall cooperate impartially with incoming Board 
members and provide them with information regarding Board policies, administrative 
regulations, and other aspects of the operation of the WKRFA. 

 



 

  Page 13 of 31 

 
 

 3.10 New Member Support 
 

 The Board and Fire District staff shall assist any new member in understanding the 
Board’s functions, policies, and procedures before they take office.  The following 
methods shall be employed: 

a. The new member shall be provided applicable materials documenting the 
role of a Board member. 

b. The new member shall be invited to attend and participate in meetings prior 
to being sworn in. 

c. The Chief shall provide material pertinent to meetings and be responsive to 
questions regarding said material. 

d. The new member shall be invited to meet with the Chief to discuss the 
services staff provides in support of WKRFA and the Governing Board. 

e. The Chief, or his representative, will give each new member: 
• A copy of the Board policy manual  
• A copy of WKRFA's Rules and Regulations  
• A copy of the WFCA's Fire Commissioner's Handbook  

  
4. Meetings of the Governance Board 
 

All meetings of the Governance Board shall be conducted in compliance with RCW 
42.30, the Washington State Open Public Meetings Act. 

 
 4.01 Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

The WKRFA Secretary shall draft the agenda after conferring with the Fire Chief and the 
Board Chair, following the general order listed below: 

 
• Meeting called to order  
• Flag salute  
• Roll call  
• Approval of agenda  
• Approval of the minutes   
• Public comments*  
• Administrative Secretary’s Report 

 Financial Update 
 Review warrants and vouchers 

• Fire Chiefs Report  
• Training Report 
• Volunteer Representative Report 
• Information Only Items  
• Unfinished Business – Follow-up items  
• Discussion items  



 

  Page 14 of 31 

 
 

• Action Items  
• Executive Session (as needed)   
• Good of the Order - Board member comments  
• Adjournment   

 
  4.02 Preparation of the Agenda 

 
 Agendas for Regular Board meetings shall be prepared in the following manner: 
 
• Within ten (10) days of the Regular Board meeting the Administrative Manager shall 

confer with the Board Chair and the Fire Chief to set the agenda items, and see that it 
is prepared and made available to the Board at least seven (7) days prior to regular 
Board meetings.  

• Agendas shall be complete with detailed information relative to the agenda, including 
Board meeting coversheets, attachments, supporting materials and existing Board 
policy pertinent to agenda items.  

• All issues, unless they are emergent in nature, shall appear before the Board on a 
“two-touch” rule.  That is, the Board shall see all items first as an Information or 
Discussion item (“first touch”) with all supportive material for the Board to review 
and have ample discussion.  If the item is satisfactorily discussed and all questions are 
answered concerning the matter, the Board may then request the item come back for 
the ‘second touch’ as an Action Item at the next meeting.   

• For special meetings of the Board, the agenda shall be distributed as soon as possible 
prior to the meeting, but no later than allowed by law.  Detailed information relative 
to the agenda of a special meeting may be provided at the meeting if it is not possible 
to distribute such material with the agenda.  

   
  4.03 Minutes 

 
The Board shall require published minutes of all its meetings.  A draft copy of the Board 
minutes shall be given to the Board seven (7) day prior to a Regular Board meeting.  
Neither a full transcript nor a recording of the meeting is required, except as otherwise 
provided by law.  The written minutes must be published after Board approval and shall 
include at least the following information: 
 
• Members of the governing body present.  
• Motions, proposals, resolutions, orders, and measures proposed and their disposition.  
• Results of all votes.  
• The substance of any discussion on any matter.  
• Minutes of executive sessions may be limited to material, the disclosure of which is 

not inconsistent with RCW Title 52.  
 



 

  Page 15 of 31 

 
 

4.04 Rules of Order 
 

 Except as otherwise provided by state law or Board Policy, the Board shall follow the 
rules of parliamentary procedure identified in “Robert’s Rules of Order”.  Such Rules 
may be amended at any meeting by majority vote, and the order of business may be 
suspended at any meeting by a majority vote of the Board. 

  
 4.05 Public comment 
 

 Members of the audience may comment on items relating to any matter related to 
WKRFA business under the Public Comment Period.  However, several rules shall apply 
to the opportunity to comment to the Board: 

• Comments may be limited to three (3) minutes per person, and a total of fifteen 
(15) minutes per topic.  Members of the audience may not ‘donate’ their three 
minutes to another speaker.  

• Members of the audience may also speak on an individual agenda item from the 
approved agenda at the time the issue is being considered by the Board, ONLY 
when recognized by the Chair.  

• All speakers shall address their remarks to the Board Chair, adhering to the 
following requirements.  
 Comments shall at all times be confined to those questions, comments and/or 

facts which are germane and relevant to the question, issue or matter which is 
under consideration;  

 Comments must be courteous in their language and deportment;    
 Use of profanity is prohibited;  
 Comments shall not engage in or discuss/comment on personalities; nor shall 

they indulge in derogatory remarks or insinuations in respect to any member 
of the Board, or WKRFA staff;   

• Any person making personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks while addressing 
the Board shall be barred from further participation by the Chair.  

 
 4.06 Voting 
 

• Votes will be recorded as necessary.  Any Board member may request that their vote 
be changed if such a request is made prior to consideration of the next order of 
business.  

• Two members may request a roll-call vote.  
• Members may abstain from voting.  Prior to the vote, the member must state for the 

record, the reason for abstaining.  
  

4.07 Quorum 
 

 A quorum consists of 50% of the Governing Board Membership, plus one (1). No action 
may be taken by the Board without the presence of a quorum. 



 

  Page 16 of 31 

 
 

 
4.08 Conflict of Interest 

 
 Members must declare a conflict of interest, recusing themselves and abstain from voting 

when conflicts of interest exist. 
 
4.09 Adjournment 

 
 Meetings may be adjourned by the Chair at the conclusion of the meeting agenda, or at 

any time during the meeting by a majority vote of the Board. 
 
4.10   Regular Meeting 

 
 The Board shall hold open public meetings monthly.  Regular meetings may be cancelled 

when it is determined by a majority of the Board members present that it is in the best 
interest of the WKRFA or that a quorum will not be present.  Board meetings scheduled 
to replace cancelled regular meetings shall be considered special meetings. 

 
4.11 Special Meetings 

 
 The Chair or a majority of the members of the Board may call and hold additional 

meetings as deemed necessary, in accordance with the provisions of RCW 42.30.080.  
Actions taken during a Special Meeting must be limited to the subject(s) identified by the 
agenda. 

 
 4.12 Executive Sessions 
 

  Executive sessions may be called by the Chair or by a majority of the members of the 
Board during an official meeting, in accordance with Washington State law. 

 
 4.13 Meeting of the Board of Volunteers 
 

 The WKRFA Board of Volunteer Firefighters Trustee meetings shall be held 
immediately after regular Board meetings when there is BVFF business to be conducted. 

 
 5. Personnel 
 

5.01 Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

 The WKRFA is committed to equal employment opportunity.  Management is required to 
recruit, employ, train, transfer, promote, pay, discipline, lay off and terminate employees 
and members solely on the basis of individual qualifications and merit and/or according 
to the standards and policies outlined in its personnel and related policies. 



 

  Page 17 of 31 

 
 

 
 Decisions involving any aspect of the employment relationship must be made without 

regard to an employee or volunteer member’s race, color, creed, religion, sex, age, 
national origin, marital status, and physical or mental handicaps that with reasonable 
accommodation do not prevent performance of the work involved, or any other status or 
characteristic protected under any applicable federal or state law. 

 
 5.02 Affirmative Action 
 

 Equal employment opportunity and treatment shall be provided in hiring, retention, 
transfer, promotion, and training of all employees and members regardless of age, 
handicap, national origin, race, color, religion, sex, or marital status. 

 
 Positive action will be taken to ensure equal employment opportunities, including 

reasonable accommodations based on an individual’s qualifications for specific duties in 
relation to organizational needs. 

 
 Continuous effort will be devoted to prevent discriminatory practices in the WKRFA. 
 
 The WKRFA will make special efforts to inform all employees and members of available 

training opportunities and assist them in securing training advancement. 
 

 5.03 Workplace Harassment 
 

 The Governance Board is committed to maintaining a working environment for its 
employees and members, which is free from any form of workplace harassment in 
violation of state and federal employment discrimination laws. 

 
 5.04 Personnel Policies 
 
  Personnel policies are effective for all employees and members. 
 
 
 
 5.05 Assignments 
 

 The assignment of employees and volunteer members, the delegation of duties, the 
determination and duration of hours of work, including the assignment of overtime, the 
location of work assignments and other matters related to the direction of the work force 
shall be determined by the Chief. 

 
 5.06 Duties of WKRFA Staff 
 



 

  Page 18 of 31 

 
 

 The duties of all WKRFA staff shall be described in Position Summaries approved by the 
Governing Board. 

  
 5.07 Delegation of Responsibility 
 

 The Governing Board shall delegate to the Chief the responsibility of developing and 
maintaining rules and regulations to implement Board policies and govern the activities 
of WKRFA staff and volunteer members.  Regulations proposed by the Chief shall be 
approved by the Board prior to implementation.  Standard Operating Guidelines are to be 
approved by the Chief. 

 
 6. Budget Administration 

 
 6.01 Budget 
 

The budget is the WKRFA's financial plan developed to authorize collection of revenue 
and payment of expenses necessary to carry out the programs supporting the goals and 
objectives of the WKRFA.  The Board shall adopt a budget annually in accordance with 
state law, and Board members shall become familiar with and understand the budget and 
budget forecasts. 

 
 6.02 Spending Limitations 
 

The Chief may be authorized to approve limited expenditures for supply and equipment 
items within parameters established by the Board of Governance, provided they are 
within the appropriate approved budget item total. The Chief’s authorized spending 
limitations and authority shall be established by Board policy. 
 

 6.03 Purchases 
 

The Governing Board must approve all purchases by either advance or subsequent 
ratification. 

 6.04 Reports 
 

The WKRFA Administrative Manager shall prepare and provide to the Board on a 
monthly basis, or more frequently, at the Chief’s discretion, written and oral financial 
reports of actual revenues and expenditures as compared with the approved budget. 

 
7. Compensation 

 
7.01 Volunteer Members Reimbursement for Expenses 

 



 

  Page 19 of 31 

 
 

 Volunteer Members shall be compensated in the following manner for expenses incurred 
while attending meetings or working on behalf of the WKRFA: 
 
• Expenses for such activities will be reimbursed by the WKRFA as provided for by 

RCW Title 52 and WKRFA policy.  
• Reimbursement for expenses is considered public information and shall be included 

in the register of paid bills.  
• Volunteer Members shall report to the WKRFA Secretary on their attendance at 

meetings for which reimbursement is sought. 
 

 7.02 Board Compensation for Services Performed 
 

A member of the Governance Board shall be compensated per RCW 52.14.010 for each 
day or portions thereof in actual attendance at official Board meetings or when 
performing other services or duties for the WKRFA. It is the function of the Board to 
approve the services that any member of the Board is authorized to perform. Board 
members shall be entitled to receive full compensation authorized by statue for the 
following services: 
  
• Attendance at regular and special meetings of the Governing Board.   
• Attendance at regular Fire Commissioners Association meetings and at meetings of 

the Board of Directors of the Association if a member of that board.  
• Attendance at Washington Fire Commissioners Association meetings, conferences 

and seminars.   
• Attendance at fire department related seminars and educational classes.   
• Attendance at WKRFA open house events.  
• Attendance at other WKRFA related activities approved by the Board.  
• Attendance Travel time when a separate day of travel nis required because of the 

location and scheduling of the activity.  
 
 
 
7.03 Educational Goal 

   
 It is the intention of the Governing Board to keep Board members informed of 

pertinent information relative to providing emergency services and changes in 
emergency services laws in the following manner: 

   
• Board members shall obtain at WKRFA expense, subscriptions to publications 

designated by the Board.  
• Board members are encouraged to attend appropriate educational opportunities 

offered for emergency services providers.  
• The Chief shall alert Board members of conferences, meetings, and publications that 

may be useful and informative.  



 

  Page 20 of 31 

 
 

 
  7.04 Travel 

 
Members of the WKRFA Governance Board shall be authorized reimbursement for travel 
expenses to activities that are of direct benefit to the WKRFA.  Reimbursement for daily 
expenses and per diem shall be the same as that allowed for WKRFA employees. 
 

8. Legal Counsel 
 

  8.01 Advice of Counsel 
 
 The Board shall request legal advice and recommended courses of action for specific 

legal questions that may expose the Fire District to liability or violations of law. 
 
 8.02 Authorization to Seek Counsel 
 

Authority to seek legal counsel shall be limited to the Fire Chief, Administrative 
Secretary and members of the Governance Board. 

 
 9. Property Inventory, Review, and Disposal 
 

9.01 Inventory Required 
 

The Fire District shall maintain a formalized program of accountability and controls over 
all inventories of furniture, fixtures, and equipment exceeding $500 in purchase price.  
The purpose of the inventory will be to aid the administration in obtaining insurance 
coverage, to aid in the management of equipment and facilities, to assist in budgeting for 
maintenance and replacement of assets, and to establish responsibility for the custody of 
equipment. 

 
 9.02 Review of Inventory 
 

The Chief shall review the inventory annually and provide the Governance Board with a 
written report detailing said inventory. 

 
 9.03 Lawful Disposal 
 

The WKRFA shall dispose of surplus or non-usable property using the monetary polices 
required by Washington State Law, with sales being conducted in a manner that will not 
exhibit favoritism or invite criticism. 

  
 9.04 Sale to Other Agencies 
 



 

  Page 21 of 31 

 
 

Items declared surplus or non-usable may, upon approval of the Board, be sold or 
disposed of to other fire departments or government agencies.  Where possible, sale of 
surplus equipment shall be made available to public agency emergency service providers 
with which the Fire District may expect to have mutual aid agreements or receive mutual 
aid support. 



 

  Page 22 of 31 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
  WKRFA Commissioner Creed 
 
   As an individual commissioner of the Governing Board, I pledge to: 
 

• Be motivated only by desire to serve the people of my community.  

• Recognize that it is my responsibility, together with that of my fellow Board 
members, to see that services are properly run - not to run them myself.   

• Work through the Fire Chief or management employees designated by the Chief, not 
over or around them.  

• Recognize that WKRFA business may be legally transacted only in open meetings 
legally called.  

• Attempt to inform themselves as to the proper duties and functions of a 
Commissioner.  

• Meet their legal responsibility by functioning as part of a legislative, policy-forming 
body, not as an administrative officer.  

• Make decisions in meetings of the Governance Board only after all sides of the 
questions have been presented.  

• Consider public disclosure regulations and intent when discussing WKRFA business, 
thus avoiding “secret” sessions of Board members held without the presence of 
WKRFA administration or the general public.  

• Protect the confidentiality of privileged or private WKRFA records and information 
that is not subject to public disclosure laws.  



 

  Page 23 of 31 

 
 

Board of Commissioner’s Duty Statement to the Community 
 

  WKRFA Commissioners are duly elected servants of the community and report directly to 
their constituents via public meetings, face to face or phone conversations, and the elections 
process.  Members of the Board are obligated to conduct the business of the WKRFA in a 
professional manner. The following is a partial list of the duties and obligations of Board 
members: 

 
• Uphold the laws of the State.  

• Attempt to appraise fairly both the present and the future interests of the community.  

• Attempt to procure adequate financial support for programs, facilities, and services.  

• Ensure that proper management of organization resources, programs and services is 
taking place.  

• Interpret the administrative needs and attitudes of the community.  

• Interpret to the community the aims and methods of the organization.  

• Ensure the integrity of the organization by conducting business in an open and ethical 
manner.  

• Ensure that the organization prospers and survives in the long term.  

• Establish polices and approve operational procedures for the organization.  

• Maintain a continuous track record of financial accountability and solvency of the 
organization.  

• Establish an annual budget and approve annual organizational goals.  

• Determine the mission and purpose of the organization.  

• Support the Chief in carrying out the mission of the organization and evaluate his or 
her performance.  

• Ensure effective organizational strategic planning.  

• Enhance the public image of the organization.  

• Recruit and orient new Board members and assess Board performance. Make yourself 
available to be present at selected programs and activities of the organization.  The 
best testimony that a Board member can give of the quality of the programs and 
services of the organization is to personally experience them.  

• Provide accurate information consistent with the policies and procedures of the Fire 
District when representing the organization.  

• Indicate when your personal opinions are being expressed, as opposed to 
organizational policy.  



 

  Page 24 of 31 

 
 

• Act in unison with other members of the Board and support the Board’s collective 
action in a positive manner.  

• Conduct an annual systematic review of all organizational activities in order to 
determine their effectiveness. 

• Seek cooperative relationships with other civic, governmental and private groups 
including businesses.  

· Ensure that incidental conversations you have with others reflect well on the 
organization.  The grapevine is a powerful source of information in any community 
and can affect an organization’s image. 



 

  Page 25 of 31 

 
 

Board Role in Reinforcing the Organization’s Vision 
 

• Ensure that there is a WKRFA vision.  

• Ensure that the vision statement, mission statement, and management philosophy are 
reviewed periodically.  

• Ensure that the vision statement is communicated to the citizenry.  

• Ensure that the Chief interprets the vision statement to the staff.  

• Ensure that the goals and objectives that are established are tied to achievement of the 
vision.  

• Evaluate the annual achievement of the goals and objectives of the organization.  

• Ensure that an accountability system is established that links the work of staff and 
their recognition to accomplishment of the organization’s vision.  

• The vision statement should influence the decision making of the Commissioner and 
guide the organization toward a common end.  

• The vision is an intuitive statement, to be believed in.  Believe it!  

 



 

  Page 26 of 31 

 
 

Potential Commissioner and Staff Problem Areas 
 

• Keeping Board members informed.  A Board member should never come to a 
meeting without having information on what is happening and why.  

• Mass media relations.  Management and members of the Board must avoid making 
statements on matters not yet discussed or decided.  

• Personnel.  Recognize there is a chain of command.  Hold the Chief responsible for 
his staff and don’t interfere.  

• Clear polices.  Policy can and should be placed in written form.  

• Use of committees.  If committees are used, set written guidelines for their functions.  

• The Board is a decision maker.  Individual members have no power – only the Board 
as a whole can make decisions.  

• Fiscal practices.  A clear-cut policy must be established regarding decision-making 
authority on expenditures, fees to be charged, budget preparation, bidding, financial 
reports and other fiscal matters.  

• Learn the art of compromise.  Before the Chief or individual Commission members 
get out so far on a limb that they can’t get back, explore possible compromises.  

• Discretionary judgments.  The Commission needs to accept that certain latitude is 
required by the Chief to make judgment decisions on a day-to-day basis that are not 
covered by policy.  

 



 

  Page 27 of 31 

 
 

Working with the Chief and the Staff 
 

• Hold the Chief responsible for conducting the business of the organization.  

• Give the Chief authority commensurate with his responsibility.  

• Expect the WKRFA to be administered by the best trained, technical, and 
professional people it is possible to retain.  

• Expect the Chief to keep the Board adequately informed at all times through both oral 
and written reports.  

• Refer all complaints to the proper administrative staff or insist that they be presented 
in writing to the entire Board.  

• Present any personal criticisms of employees to the Chief.  

 
Why does the relationship between the Chief and the Board deteriorate?  Some of the 
factors that contribute to the breaking down of the relationship are as follows: 
 
• Lack of a common sense of vision or purpose for the Fire Dept.  

• Failure to reinforce the growth and development of one another; in other words, they 
don’t assume the responsibility of helping each other continue to grow.  

• Loss of personal rapport leading to a breakdown in communications; in other words, 
they are not connecting.  

• Failure of the administration to use influence to help shape policy.  

• Failure of Board members and Fire District staff to understand their respective roles 
(policy vs. administration and operations).  

• Failure of Board members and administration to listen effectively to one another.  
Failure to support one another and act as a cohesive unit, especially under pressure.  

• Development of cliques.  

• Focusing on people and personalities rather than ideas, concepts and policies.  

 



 

  Page 28 of 31 

 
 

Unethical Practices 
 

• Holding unofficial “secret” meetings.  

• Withholding information.  

• Providing inaccurate and/or misleading information.  

• Divulging confidential information.  

• Fiscal irresponsibility.  

• Using Fire District services for personal use.  

• Asking for preferential treatment.  

• Giving preferential treatment.  

• Engaging in activities that are in direct conflict with the best interests of the Fire 
District.  

• Undermining other Commissioners by talking behind their backs and/or operating 
with hidden agendas.  

• Engaging in immoral behavior.  

• Falsifying information.  

• Padding an expense reimbursement voucher.  

• Authorizing Fire District staff to violate Fire District rules and regulations.  

• Pilfering Fire District materials, supplies, and/or equipment.    

• Concealing one’s errors.  

 



 

  Page 29 of 31 

 
 

 
Board of Commissioner’s Duty Statement for the Chief 

 
   The Chief reports to the Board of Commissioners and is responsible for carrying out the 

 directions of the Board as follows: 
 

• Providing accurate and complete information to the Board so the commissioners can 
make thoughtful decisions and establish viable and relevant policies.  

• Recommending specific policies to the Board as well as recommending action on 
agenda items that require Board action.  

• Administering and implementing policies established by the Board.  

• Being responsible for the attitudes and working environment of the organization.  

• Developing and nurturing interagency relationships.  

• Assuming responsibility for legal matters on a day-to-day basis.  

• Development of the staff as a working team.  

• Preparation of a preliminary budget proposal for submission to the Board.  

• Preparation of the program goals and objectives of the organization.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
  

APPENDIX B 



 

  Page 30 of 31 

 
 

 
Title 52:  Fire Protection Districts 
  
Chapter 52.26.  Regional fire protection service authorities. 
 
§ 52.26.090  Powers of governing board. (1) The governing board of the authority is 
responsible for the execution of the voter-approved plan. Participating jurisdictions shall review 
the plan every ten years. The board may: 
(a) Levy taxes and impose benefit charges as authorized in the plan and approved by authority 
voters; 
(b) Enter into agreements with federal, state, local, and regional entities and departments as 
necessary to accomplish authority purposes and protect the authority's investments; 
(c) Accept gifts, grants, or other contributions of funds that will support the purposes and 
programs of the authority; 
(d) Monitor and audit the progress and execution of fire protection and emergency service 
projects to protect the investment of the public and annually make public its findings; 
(e) Pay for services and enter into leases and contracts, including professional service contracts;  
(f) Hire, manage, and terminate employees; and 
(g) Exercise powers and perform duties as the board determines necessary to carry out the 
purposes, functions, and projects of the authority in accordance with Title 52 RCW if one of the 
fire protection jurisdictions is a fire district, unless provided otherwise in the regional fire 
protection service authority plan, or in accordance with the statutes identified in the plan if none 
of the fire protection jurisdictions is a fire district. 

(2) An authority may enforce fire codes as provided under chapter 19.27 RCW. [2006 c 
200 § 6; 2004 c 129 § 9.] 


